EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30 13
14 29 16 30 15

(Daiwa Equity Fund Series - New Major Economies Fund)

SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Peter Callaghan

(Block 5, Harcourt Centre, Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, Ireland)

03 (6212) 8316

2018 27
109.35

16 15 2004
2005 15

1/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1990

2004

31 32

21224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30
50

1995 25

2004

2004 29

2004 16

2005 21 2005

28
2015 31

2015 10 2015 10

3/224



EDINETOOOO
0000000 OO00D0DO000D00D0O00D0DO000DO0Ono(EL4857)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HATF 2B AF4 Pz F ) —7
(Daiwa Equity Fund Series)

-

—

S Ay zd S E-F e F
{Mew Major Economies Fund)

EEEt (sxfip= FErE
TATATd e e PP TATAT = T RAT
EAFANTFI)EireF (PN R Jise R
CAMT Fund Services (Ireland) (3MT Trustees (Ireland) Limited)
Limited)

CFELETE - v - FEEDREREEL
e FOEEDIER - BRERE) TREHERE
=
i =T
17 ¥
tim i
BB 5
E2 E2l
# #
REme e ekl
HFi-hkitaiRm=it
UB27¥w b - =304 o P fREVEL
RIS (UBS Azzet Management (Japan) Ltd)
B (o FicBE T 2B RS
(HFRCEWE 2+ PR - BE
[Be): PR o e Rl g (g = Ry 1SRRI

A LS

(12 UBE7PEw b - =34 b
(- Jise R
CUBS Azzet Manazement (Singapore) Lid)
(i) UBZ AG, UBE7¥ob - =FUA}b
CFa bl
CUBS AGLUBS Aszet Management)

(77 FiCBE T S EERR

4/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2015 10

2015 10
2015 10

2015 10
2004 29

2005 21
2004 29
2004 29
2004
2015
2004

2014
1995 25

5/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

40
2018
40 6,087 6,250 82 7,438
2018 27
152.17 132.39
1995 25
2018
400,000
. S 100
(Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland)
Limited) 62,500,000

@

(b)

@)

(b)

©

6/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

18
12 1,270
12,700

©)

71224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

PricewaterhouseCoopers

(b)

15

8/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

Q)
©

)

@

EDINET

EDINET

26 198

(b)

9/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

(b)

©

(D

10/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30
20
30

7
=
L J

11/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

=T HEEE

‘ & BIEEE I _\ /’_ Bt

RS AL SAEED
ot
Rt 747
‘ TERS I—’/ \ ERISEH I
e R —— HIEIE 1B BB

«FFUAMC L ZEF

€y

12/224



EDINETOO OO
00000000000000000000000000000000(E14857)

0000000000000000000
mEEAET

UBSF o k- R 20}
o

LR ER lr \l B
UBS A& UBSF E=k- UBS FEw k- Rk

XFSEVEFaYb) (P HR— I UST YR
(T 083AF—4h) (X=— 08T —4h)

. OVTF-EEBLFTSUILOEE0A 1) o hEEHLFAUF Ol ORE
& _hEESLF I T Bk
. AT EEELFTSUILOHT- Far Ll DS
b 7o Lot Mg 21 FFUE M- Tl Mg

L1

OxF-HEL LU TS m
PRl il i R E |

13/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018

15 20

10

12

14

1996

14/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018

8,290

50

61,000
2018
3.3 361
1966
1998
2018
23 3,600 2018 8,306 91

5,835 64 2,471 27

15/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

(b)

©

(d)

©)

)

C))

16/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€y
10
Q) 10
100

€)) 10

50

4) 10

30

1988

®) @ €
(6) 50

)

©))

17/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

©®

(10) 10
(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

10

(15)

(16)
an

(18)

18/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

19/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

(b)

©

@

(b)
©

(@ ()

@
(b)
©
(D

@
(b)
©
©)
O] @ (@ ®
Q)

20/224



10

11

12

13

€))
(b)

(b)

14

15

16

@

16

EDINETOOOO

1 o o o o =5 225159

21/224

18

Ooooooooooooooooooad

100

22



17

18

(b)

©

(D

©)

Q)

@)

(b)
©)

(D
©)

Q)

EDINETOOOO

1 o o o o =5 225159

221224

18

15

Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

),
19

20

21

22

15
23

@

(b)

24

25

32

23/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

26

27

28

€))

(b)

29

@
(b)

©
(D

30

@

(b)
©

31

@)

(b)
32 (a)

24/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(b)

33

34

35

@

(b)

©

36

37

)

)

)

10

25/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

31 32

26/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

271224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

28/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

29/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010

30

2012 12 21

30/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

) 2012
No 648/2012

31/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

(b)

©

2008

32/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

33/224



(

)

(

)

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

34/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2012

7 FORRA S ICE B RN FrUREDIERNSREI S ALED
1 O D E - E M RE R OHS FMREROLER

ko P {ZOVESE~2018E4R) (%) (201 S F-- 20185 4H)
__L. e A o et e o e Lt L H Vel il |_':"_. e P . Ll Ul Pt T Bl Sl TR bl e L el el
EMIITE S () | ~ Bl
2 o] == WEES EEEERAN A RRESS N | g0 oo |o|—F |
= =
ooy |-_'|| & e e
15 &0 = . smman
442 48,3 141
10 T R SR S R G- F-
= P 196 17.0
> == i = e i =5 51 oy L | 'f&l" o j:._.' o4 . 53 E:
A + =1 B +*
38
- ek e =113
= 1
] 95 By 9.2 L
2 —286

MHESE  2004EEH NISESE I0IGESE X07ESR 2018E<H o B X8EH FARE DxEN TAE8 EREN

R

TOPIX

S&P

BBG El
FTSE

FTSE

S&P Bloomberg L.P.

TOPIX

FTSE FTSE FTSE Fixed Income LLC

35/224



@

(b)

@

(b)

EDINETOOOO

1 o o o o =5 225159

Ooooooooooooooooooad

100

10
100

10
100

3.24
2.16
1.08
0.54
1.88
1.88

0.90

36/224

3.0
2.0
1.0
0.5

0.07



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.70

0.10

@
(b)
©
(d

©)
)

@

Q)
(M
@
)
)

37/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(m
(@)
)
(V)

ESMA/2013/201

VI

@

(b)

38/224



(A

a

(¢

'€

4

G

(6

7

@

20

15.315

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20.315 15.315 2038
15
15.315
2038 15
20.315
2038 20 15
®)

39/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

¢
3
20.315 15.315 2038
20 15
4
15.315
2038

15
)

20.315 15.315 2038 20 15
(6 5)
7

20

120
20
80

)

40/224



20

739

(

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

739

739

) 110

41/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)

()

421224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

41
25

41 25

2006
2008
41
25
15
10
10
de minimus
15

15

43/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

44/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

739
30 12 31

2010

2007

2007 20 60

739
(a

45/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(b
(c
(
(
2015 11 10 2017
2016
2011 16
2014 107
2010
30
2012 12 21
2013

2014 2014 S.1. No.292 2014 10

46/224



2014

14

2016

1997

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30
30
2011 16
2014 107
2014 2015

2015 S.1. No.583

(

2011 16 2014 107

891 891

47/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

http://ww.revenue.ie/en/business/aeoi/index.html
http://www._oecd.org/tax/automatic-exchange/

2014 107

48/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018

8,972,750.43 25.71
6,150,978.74 17.63
6,040,267.48 17.31
3,390,094.92 9.72
1,886,664.86 5.41
1,143,772.20 3.28
722,431.04 2.07
459,430.48 1.32
28,766,390.15 82.44
3,530,063.74 10.12
1,341,192.21 3.84
216,486.00 0.62
5,087,741.95 14.58
33,854,132.10 97.02
1,041,194.82 2.98
(345?2?6326'92) 100.00
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2018
E‘S’SC SBERBANK OF RUSSIA 752,150 | 2.33| 1.,752,441.66 | 3.48| 2,619,448.88| 7.:
TENCENT HLDGS LTD HKD 49,700 | 19.91| 989,723.88 | 49.49| 2,450,512.00| 7.05
l'JgALL’Iﬁg'BANCO HLDGS ADR 129,410 | 10.55 | 1,365.864.54 | 14.84 | 1,920,444.39| .50
BANCO BRADESCO SA ADR
R 188,430 | 6.88 | 1,296,806.50 | 9.96 | 1,876,762.80| .38
CHINA CONST BANK H SHS 1,654,000 | o0.83| 1,367,776.26 | 1.03| 1,702,786.52 | 4.88
EE[ROLEO BRASILEIRO PRF 253,766 | 5.99 | 1,520,335.34 | 6.51| 1,652,344.86 | 4.74
8;; LUKOIL ADR US LINE 19,461 | 53.98 | 1,050,594.85 | 65.78 | 1,280,144.58 | 3.67
VALE SA BRL 88,551 8.44 747,178.32 14.01 1,240,809.56 .56
AVBEV SA BRL 172,800 | 5.39| 931,006.80 | 6.71| 1,158,960.72| 3.3
WNC NORILSK NICKEL PJSC

10 |3 ol 61,859 | 17.33| 1,071,874.03 | 17.20| 1,063,665.52| 3.05

1 G';[')BABA HLDG SPON ADR 5,721 | 133.75 |  765,163.45 [ 173.00 |  904,881.90 .85

12 | OIL LUKOIL ADR E/C LI 12,328 | s4.62| 673,414.42 | 66.92| 824,989.76 | 2.36
LINE USD

13 a&go BIOPHARMACEUTICAL 380,000 | 0.70| 266,200.05 | 2.14| 813,403.82| 2.33
TAIWAN SEMICONDUCTOR

ST v 21,200 | 26.29| 557,450.32 | 38.17|  809,204.00 | 2.32

15 E&gG AN INSURANCE H SHS 81,000| 5.39| 436,646.06| 9.79| 792,610.05 | 2.27
GALAXY ENTERTAINMENT

ST (Rl 84,000| 9.03| 758,633.34| s8.60| 722,431.04| 2.07

17 SANDS CHINA LTD HKD 128,000 4.03 516,383.84 5.64 721,666.56 .07

18 EQB EDUCATION ADR CL A 19,600 | 20.43|  400,332.50 | 36.66|  718,536.00 | 2.06

19 E‘I\'tILQD'A LTD GDR USD 21,860 | 31.88| 696,840.65 | 29.10|  636,126.00 | 1.82

20 |1 TECHNOLOGY CORP 182,000 | 3.28| 596,186.80 | 3.14| s71,975.44| 1.64
INDUSTRIAL AND COMMER

21 [ o 645,000 | 0.85| 549,379.05| o0.86| 557,180.27 | 1.60
TAIWAN SEMICONDUCTOR

22 | AR ST 67,000| s5.01| 335,953.37 | 7.54| 505,485.42| 1.45
BRILLIANCE CHINA

23 [ ERIRLIACE Tl 74,000 | 1.32| 360.587.41| 1.68| 459,430.48| 1.32

24 | Losas AvERICANAS SA BRL 95,120 | 3.64| 346,538.28 | 4.28|  407,520.29 | 1.17
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MOBILE TELESYSTEMS PJSC

ADS US LINE 33,900 7.79 264,233.26 | 10.70 362,730.00 1.04
WAHINDRA AND MAHINDRA 26,952 | 10.80 291,210.87 | 12.85 346,333.20 0.99
GDR USD

2018

HDFC BK LTD JPM CW19

02JUL19 2019/7/2 58,058 | 1,086,404.79 | 1,663,942.28 4.77

MM PN CS 5AUG19 2019/8/5 | 103,740 | 1,154,289.46 | 1,341,192.21 3.84

INDUSIND BANK LTD PN CS

02AUG21 2021/8/2 39,913 790,022.67 | 1,127,306.77 3.23

POWER GRID CORP OF INDIA

PN CS 02AUG21 2021/8/2 | 237,134 625,349.62 738,814.69 2.12

2018

2018
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2018
9.60 1,050

2009 15 93,237 10,195 9.60 (1.050)
16.24 1,776

2010 15 139,207 15,222 20.24 (2.213)
17.87 1,954

2011 15 150,698 16,479 17.87 (1.954)
12.51 1,368

2012 15 92,460 10,111 15.01 (1.641)
11.33 1,239

2013 15 75,807 8,289 12.83 (1.403)
10 9.75 1,066
2014 15 59,004 6,452 9.75 (1.066)
11 8.96 980
2015 15 46,675 5,104 8.96 (980)
12 7.00 765
2016 15 32,263 3,528 7.00 (765)
13 9.89 1,081
2017 15 39,237 4,291 (9.89) (1.081)
14 13.64 1,492
2018 15 39,765 4,348 (13.64) (1.492)
2017 40,708 4,451 10.68 1,168
39,668 4,338 10.53 1,151

42,730 4,673 11.49 1,256

43,538 4,761 12.02 1,314

43,265 4,731 12.16 1,330

10 42,807 4,681 12.25 1,340

11 41,585 4,547 12.52 1,369

12 37,560 4,107 12.84 1,404

2018 38,501 4,210 13.27 1,451
37,725 4,125 13.03 1,425

36,063 3,043 12.49 1,366

34,895 3,816 12.05 1,318
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(HEFL) LyErER (200457 H168)~2018F4827H (EFRHEIL

gg'g [ HARBM(EDANL. AW | ggg
30.0 — 1 O DT (L, ) 200
250 1250
20.0 1200
100 {150
10.0 150
oo e {50
0.0 I - L i i i
04/7/16 06/7/16 08/7/18 10/7/18 12/7/16 14/7/16 16/7/16
0.00 0.00
4.00 437.40
0.00 0.00
2.50 273.38
1.50 164.03
10 0.00 0.00
1 0.00 0.00
12 0.00 0.00
13 0.00 0.00
14 0.00 0.00
2011 18 > 50
2012 17 1.00
. 2018 16 100

16.90
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61.20

110.83

10.04

16.00

2.56

10 13.95

11 8.10

12 21.88

13 41.29

14 37.92

100x%

120% 110.83%

80%
41.28% a3792%

-16.00% -1395% ~8.10% T cre

—_g09% | —61.20%
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775,450 2,650,830 9,707,540
775,450 2,650,830 9,707,540
387,820 1,524,710 8,570,650
387,820 1,524,710 8,570,650
646,440 785,600 8,431,490
646,440 785,600 8,431,490
338,330 1,376,730 7,393,090
338,330 1,376,730 7,393,090
262,320 964,650 6,690,760
262,320 964,650 6,690,760
10 835,060 1,472,460 6,053,360
835,060 1,472,460 6,053,360
11 47,840 889,420 5,211,780
47,840 889,420 5,211,780
12 32,650 637,260 4,607,170
32,650 637,260 4,607,170
13 104,900 744,170 3,967,900
104,900 744,170 3,967,900
14 276,180 1,329,260 2,914,820
276,180 1,329,260 2,914,820
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2018 15

2018 2017
6 640,092 69,994 486,849 53,237
2, 3 39,304,314 4,297,927 38,772,654 4,239,790
7 186,436 20,387 218,578 23,902
40,130,842 4,388,308 39,478,081 4,316,928
29,148,200 3,187,356 39,679,000 4,338,899
(94,155,733)  (10,295,929)  (92,163,811)  (10,078,113)
101,857,433 11,138,110 91,722,233 10,029,826
36,849,900 4,029,537 39,237,422 4,290,612
8 3,280,942 358,771 240,659 26,316
3,280,942 358,771 240,659 26,316
40,130,842 4,388,308 39,478,081 4,316,928

10
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2018 15
2018 2017

13 14,228,519 1,555,889 13,477,158 1,473,727
14,228,519 1,555,889 13,477,158 1,473,727
10 369,652 40,421 335,581 36,696
10 328,579 35,930 298,295 32,619
10 45,167 4,939 41,028 4,486
10 28,743 3,143 26,109 2,855
10 119,153 13,029 104,725 11,452
30,492 3,334 26,920 2,944
145,599 15,921 80,201 8,770
1,067,385 116,719 912,859 99,821
2 (111,114) (12,150) (93,784) (10, 255)
13,050,020 1,427,020 12,470,515 1,363,651
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2018 15
39,679,000 (92,163,811) 91,722,233 39,237,422
13,050,020 13,050,020
(2,914,820) (2,914,820)
2,761,800 428,736 3,190,536
(13,292,600) (2,420,658) (15,713,258)
29,148,200 (94,155,733) 101,857,433 36,849,900
46,071,700 (93,060,162) 79,251,718 32,263,256
12,470,515 12,470,515
1,049,000 (73,328) 975,672
(7.,441,700) 969,679 (6,472,021)
39,679,000 (92,163,811) 91,722,233 39,237,422
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2018 15
1990
2004
2015 10
2015 10
2013 15
2004 16
ATFM
102 FRS102
2018 15 11
FRS102
2018 15 2017 15
2018 15 HDFC Bank Japan JP CW-19 02-Jul-19, Indusind Bank Ltd PN CS 02-Aug-21,
Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd PN CS 05-Aug-19, Power Grid Corp of India PN CS 02-Aug-21 Hindustan Petroleum JPM CW19
08-Aug-19 2017 15 HDFC Bank Japan JP CW-17 06-Feb-17, Indusind Bank
Ltd PN CS 02-Aug-21, Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd PN CS 05-Aug-19, Power Grid Corp of India PN CS 02-Aug-21 Tata

Motors Ltd PN CS 23-Jul-19
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FRS102 1AS39

2017 FRS 102

FRS102 22

FRS102 22
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FRS102 7.1A
BBH
2018 2017

33,876,851 34,484,143

5,427,463 4,288,511

39,304,314 38,772,654

30,214,212 3,662,639 33,876,851

5,427,463 5,427,463

30,214,212 9,090,102 39,304,314

34,484,143 34,484,143

4,288,511 4,288,511

34,484,143 4,288,511 38,772,654
9,090,102 2017 4,288,511
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2017

2018 1,965,216 5.33 2017 1,938,633 4.94
2017
2018 15 2017 15
12
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2018 2017
5,083,781 5,365,679 452
34,293 25,567
9,917,137 34,037 7,411,125 927
130 113
6,922 6,127
1,665,301 92,413 1,308,616 58,797
16,666,219 167,795 14,085,420 91,983
2018 2017
254,189 268,284 23
1,715 1,278
495,857 1,702 370,556 46
7 6
346 306
83,265 4,620 65,431 2,940
833,311 8,390 704,271 4,599
BBH BBH BBH
BBH BBH

BBH
2017

10
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50

2018
36,849,900 36,849,900
3,280,942 3,280,942
40,130,842 40,130,842
2017
39,237,422 39,237,422
240,659 240,659
39,478,081 39,478,081
BBH BBH
2018 2017
193 40
112,244 182,914
68,160 25,719
9,890
5,839 15
186,436 218,578
2018 2017

8 6

108,955
66,255 69,863

2,914,820
10 190,904 170,790
3,280,942 240,659
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2018 2017
3,967,900 4,607,170
276,180 104,900
(1,329,260) (744,170)
2,914,820 3,967,900
1.88
0.07
0.90
0.70
0.10
2018 2017

43,044 42,915
38,261 38,147
5,277 5,274
3,355 3,353
27,385 22,189
28,098 25,428
45,484 33,484
190,904 170,790

FRS102

2018 15
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2,914,820 1.00 2,914,820
2017 15
2018 2017

5,191,890 625,612

129 130

5,192,019 625,742

(1,587,051) (2,702,475)

(659) (266)

(1,587,710) (2,702,741)

9,605,936 14,555,634

1,015,162 997,714

3,112 809

14,228,519 13,477,158

2018 2017 2016
39,764,720 39,237,422 32,263,256
(2,914,820)
36,849,900 39,237,422 32,263,256
2,914,820 3,967,900 4,607,170
13.64 9.89 7.00
1997 739 B

1997
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2018 2017

3.1880

0.8147 0.9394

7.8235 77547

251.6500 289.0400

0.7249 0.8183

29.5370 31.5570
17
18

2018 10
19
2018 10
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2018 15
2017 1.64
Brilliance China Automotive Holdings 294,000 737,302 2.00
737,302 2.00
2017 25.00
Ambev SA 175,800 1,184,281 3.21
Banco Bradesco SA ADR 191,500 2,106,500 5.72
CCR SA 65,000 325,568 0.88
Cielo SA 45,704 343,521 0.93
Itau Unibanco Holdings ADR 148,710 2,099,785 5.70
Lojas Americanas SA 77,020 287,528 0.78
Petroleo Brasileiro SA Petrobras 257,524 1,389,460 3.77
Raia Drogasil SA 13,000 350,705 0.95
Vale SA 88,551 1,202,718 3.26
9,290,066 25.20
2017 12.54
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd 3,289 617,641 1.68
Baidu Inc 2,300 581,992 1.58
China Resources Land Ltd 41,777 137,503 0.37
New Oriental ED & Technology GP Inc 4,300 451,156 1.22
Sands China Ltd 137,200 771,624 2.10
Sino Biopharmaceutical 410,000 778,756 2.11
Tal Education Group CL A USD 20,900 649,572 1.76
Tencent Holdings Ltd 57,500 3,183,869 8.64
7,172,113 19.46
2017 2.41
China Construction Bank - H 1,792,000 1,795,779 4.87
China Vanke Co 58,900 290,980 0.79
Ping An Insurance - H 97,000 1,093,552 2.97
3,180,311 8.63
2017 5.04

AIA Group Ltd 68,400 588,397 1.60
China Unicom (Hong Kong) Ltd 390,000 539,375 1.46

1,127,772 3.06
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2017 14.79
Gail India Ltd 17,545 815,843 2.22
HDFC Bank 2,800 286,804 0.78
Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd 34,952 421,172 1.14
1,523,819 4.14

2017 19.23
Magnit PJSC 17,783 514,996 1.40
MMC Norilsk Nickel PJSC ADR 61,859 1,281,100 3.48
Mobile Telesystems PJSC 36,000 394,200 1.07
Oil Company Lukoil PJSC E/C 12,328 850,385 2.31
Oil Company Lukoil PJSC US 21,360 1,471,811 3.99
Sberbank of Russia PJSC 863,167 3,662,639 9.94
8,175,131 22.19
2017 7.24

Delta Electronics Inc 124,000 575,143 1.56
Largan Precision Co 4,000 545,756 1.48
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing TWD 67,000 544,402 1.48
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing USD 24,400 1,005,036 2.73
2,670,337 7.25
2017 87.89 33,876,851 91.93

2017 10.93
HDFC Bank Japan JP CW-19 02-Jul-19 61,958 1,843,870 5.00
Indusind Bank Ltd PN CS 02-Aug-21 45,613 1,208,220 3.28
Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd PN CS 05-Aug-19 105,740 1,263,931 3.43
Power Grid Corp of India PN CS 02-Aug-21 253,134 794,309 2.16
5,110,330 13.87

2017 0.00
Hindustan Petroleum JPM CW19 08-Aug-19 47,475 317,133 0.86
317,133 0.86

2017 10.93 5,427,463 14.73
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2018 15
AIA Group Ltd 115,200
Alibaba Group Holdings Ltd 3,711
Baidu Inc 2,900 2,900
Banco Bradesco SA ADR 76,300
Bharat Petroleum JPM CW-17 13-Dec-17 34,076
Brilliance China Automotive Holdings 246,000
China Construction Bank - H 2,308,000
China Mobile Ltd 53,000
China Unicom (Hong Kong) Ltd 492,000
China Vanke Co 58,900
Delta Electronics Inc 159,000
Gail India Ltd 19,521
HDFC Bank 10,400 11,100
HDCF Bank Japan JP CW-17 06-Feb-17 69,026
HDFC Bank Japan JP CW-19 02-Jul-19 69,026
Hindustan Petroleum JPM CW19 08-Aug-19 71,213
Icici Bank ADR 220,700
Indusind Bank Ltd PN CS 02-Aug-21 34,860 33,596
Infosys Ltd ADR 94,500
Itau Unibanco Holdings ADR 15,600 54,100
Largan Precision Co 3,000
Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd 31,585 22,955
MMC Norilsk Nickel PJSC 13,581
New Oriental ED & Technology GP Inc 6,300
0il Company Lukoil PJSC US 13,106
CIA Brasiliera DISTR(PAO DE ACUCAR) 36,400
Petroleo Brasileiro SA Petrobras 76,546
Ping An Insurance - H 86,500
Sberbank of Russia PJSC 111,356 247,360
Reliance Industries GDR LI Line 55,922
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing USD 27,900
Tal Education Group CL A USD 29,400
Tencent Holdings Ltd 36,600
Vale SA 62,780

20
20
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
New Major Economies Fund
Statement of Financial Position
As at 15th January 2018

2018 2017
Notes Uss$ US$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 640,092 486,849
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,3 39,304,314 38,772,654
Debtors 7 186,436 218,578
Total assets 40,130,842 39,478,081
Equity
Unit capital 29,148,200 39,679,000
unit premium (94,155,733) (92,163,811)
Retained earnings 101,857,433 91,722,233
Total equity 36,849,900 39,237,422
Liabilities
Creditors 8 3,280,942 240,659
Total liabilities 3,280,942 240,659
Total equity and liabilities 40,130,842 39,478,081

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

On behalf of SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Peter Callaghan Keiji Nakamura

Date: 10-05-18
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
New Major Economies Fund
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 15th January 2018

2018 2017
Notes Us$ US$
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit 13 14,228,519 13,477,158
or loss
Total net income 14,228,519 13,477,158
Expenses
Investment Manager fees 10 369,652 335,581
Distributor and Agent Security fees 10 328,579 298,295
Administration fees 10 45,167 41,028
Depositary fees 10 28,743 26,109
Sub-Custodian fees 10 119,153 104,725
Audit fees 30,492 26,920
Other expenses 145,599 80,201
Total expenses 1,067,385 912,859
Withholding taxes 2 (111,114) (93,784)
Total comprehensive income for year 13,050,020 12,470,515

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations.

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 15th January 2018

At 16th January 2017

Total comprehensive income for year
Distribution (Note 12)

Proceeds from equity units issued

Payments for equity units redeemed

At 15th January 2018

At 16th January 2016
Total comprehensive income for year
Proceeds from equity units issued

Payments for equity units redeemed

At 15th January 2017
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
New Major Economies Fund
Statement of Changes in Equity

Unit Capital Unit Premium Eg:ﬁ:gg: Total Equity
us$ Us$ US$ uss
39,679,000 (92,163,811) 91,722,233 39,237,422
- - 13,050,020 13,050,020

- - (2,914,820) (2,914,820)

2,761,800 428,736 - 3,190,536
(13,292,600) (2,420,658) - (15,713,258)
29,148,200 (94,155,733) 101,857,433 36,849,900
46,071,700 (93,060,162) 79,251,718 32,263,256
- - 12,470,515 12,470,515

1,049,000 (73,328) - 975,672
(7,441,700) 969,679 - (6,472,021)
39,679,000 (92,163,811) 91,722,233 39,237,422

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15th January 2018
GENERAL INFORMATION

Daiwa Equity Fund Series (the" Fund” ) was constituted on 4th June 2004 as an open-ended
umbrella unit trust authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (the" Central Bank” ) pursuant
to the provisions of the Unit Trusts Act, 1990. The Fund was approved by the Central Bank as
a Retail Investor Alternative Investment Fund on 8th October 2015. A new Prospectus has been
approved by the Central Bank dated 8th October 2015.

The Trust Deed constitutes the Fund, which since 15th July 2013 is comprised of one sub-fund,
namely, New Major Economies Fund (the“ Sub-Fund” ). The Sub-Fund commenced operations on 16th
July 2004. The proceeds from the issue of units in the Sub-Fund are applied in the records
and accounts of the Fund for the Sub-Fund and the assets and liabilities and income and
expenditure attributable thereto are applied to the Sub-Fund subject to the provisions of the
Trust Deed. Monies subscribed for the Sub-Fund must be in its denominated currency, US Dollar
(“ US$” ). These financial statements relate solely to the Sub-Fund.

The investment objective of the Sub-Fund is to provide unitholders with capital appreciation
by investing in a selection of diversified and potential high growth stock markets namely
Brazil, Russia, Eastern Europe, India and Greater China.

The Alternative Investment Fund Manager of the Fund is SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited
(the* AIFM" ).

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Sub-Fund are as follows:

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with the historical
cost convention, as adjusted for the revaluation of financial instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss and in compliance with Accounting Standards issued by the Financial
Reporting Council, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, “ The Financial Reporting

Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” (* FRS 102" ).

The financial statements for the current year have been prepared up to the valuation point of
15th January 2018 which is 11.00 (Dublin Time) as detailed in the Prospectus.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis of accounting.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15th January 2018
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are summarised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Investments
This category has two sub-categories; financial assets and liabilities held for trading, and
those designated by management at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

Financial assets held for trading (* trading securities” ) are securities that are acquired
for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price or dealer®s margin or are
included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term profit taking exists. The Sub-Fund
holds equities and participatory notes at 15th January 2018 and 2017, both of which are held
for trading.

Securities listed on a stock exchange or traded on a regulated market are valued at their
fair value based on quoted prices. Securities which are not freely transferable, or which are
not regularly traded, or which for any other reason are subject to limited marketability, are
valued at fair value.

As at 15th January 2018, the securities described above were made up of HDFC Bank Japan JP CW-
19 02-Jul-19, Indusind Bank Ltd PN CS 02-Aug-21, Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd PN CS 05-Aug-19,
Power Grid Corp of India PN CS 02-Aug-21 and Hindustan Petroleum JPM CW19 08-Aug-19. As at
15th January 2017, the securities described above were made up of HDFC Bank Japan JP CW-17 06-
Feb-17, Indusind Bank Ltd PN CS 02-Aug-21, Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd PN CS 05-Aug-19, Power
Grid Corp of India PN CS 02-Aug-21 and Tata Motors Ltd PN CS 23-Jul-19. Further details can
be seen in the Schedule of Investments on pages 32 to 33.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15th January 2018
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments (continued)

The Sub-Fund®s trading securities are accounted for on the trade date and are acquired at
fair value at time of acquisition and transaction costs are expensed as incurred and included
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gains and losses on trading securities are
calculated on a* first in first out” basis and include related transaction charges and are
included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Fair value estimates are made at a
specific point in time, based on market conditions and information about the financial
instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of
significant judgement and therefore, cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

Under FRS 102, Fair Value Measurement, the Fund uses the recognition and measurement
provisions of IAS 39 Financial Instruments.

Foreign Currencies

Assets and liabilities of the Sub-Fund denominated in foreign currencies are measured using
the currency (the functional currency) of the primary economic environment in which the Sub-
Fund operates, this is the US$. Securities transactions are recorded in the financial
statements on the trade date of the transaction and translated into US$ at the exchange rate
prevailing at the close of business on the trade date.

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into US$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the year end. Foreign currency gains or losses arising from trading
activities are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the Sub-Fund®s financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which it operates (the* functional currency” ), this is the
US Dollar (* US$” ), as all units are issued and redeemed in US$, which is also the Sub-
Fund"s presentation currency.

Fair Value

The Fund has early adopted” Amendments to FRS 102 - Fair Value Hierarchy Disclosures” , which
is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January 2017. This requires the
Fund to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15th January 2018
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income

Dividend income is recorded gross of any non-reclaimable withholding taxes suffered on an ex-
date basis. Interest income is accounted for on an effective interest basis gross of any non-
reclaimable withholding taxes. Discounts and premiums on securities are amortised and
accreted rateably over the life of the respective securities. These are presented as part of
net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Participating units

The Fund issues equity units, which are redeemable at the unitholder®s option and are
classified as equity in accordance with FRS 102 Section 22. The Net Asset Value (* NAV” ) per
unit is calculated by dividing the total Net Assets of the Sub-Fund by the number of units in
issue. All units are issued and redeemed at this price.

Should the equity units® terms or conditions change such that they do not comply with the
strict criteria of FRS 102 Section 22, the equity units would be reclassified to a financial
liability from the date the instrument ceases to meet the criteria. The financial liability
would be measured at the instrument"s fair value at the date of reclassification. Any
difference between the carrying value of the equity instrument and fair value of the
liability on the date of reclassification would be recognised in equity. Equity units can be
put back to the Sub-Fund at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Sub-
Fund®s trading NAV calculated in accordance with the Fund®s regulations.

Distributions

The AIFM®s intention is to declare distributions annually, in accordance with the provisions
of the Prospectus, out of all net interest, dividends and other income received by the Sub-
Fund subject to such adjustments as may be appropriate pursuant to the provisions of the
Trust Deed. The AIFM may also distribute to the unitholders annually or at such other times
as it may determine the realised and unrealised capital gains less realised and unrealised
capital losses of the Sub-Fund. All income and net capital gain of the Sub-Fund which are not
distributed shall be invested pursuant to the Sub-Fund®s investment policy.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15th January 2018
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Distributions (continued)

Distributions will be declared as at the accounting date (the" distribution date” ) and will
be paid on the second business day immediately following the distribution date to the
Distributor in respect of units distributed in Japan. Distributions will be made to
unitholders entered on the register at the close of business on the business day preceding
the distribution date. In Japan, if the holding of units is entrusted to the Distributor,
dividends will be paid to Japanese unitholders by the Distributor on the date designated by
the Distributor after its receipt. Please refer to Note 12 for further details.

Cash Flow Statement
The Fund has availed of the exemption available to open ended investment funds under FRS 102
Section 7.1A not to prepare a cash flow statement.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances held with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (* BBH" )
in its capacity as sub-custodian.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2018 2017
Us$ us$
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for trading:
- Equities 33,876,851 34,484,143
- Participatory Notes 5,427,463 4,288,511
39,304,314 38,772,654
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES

Notes to the Financial Statements

15th January 2018

(Continued)

4_  FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below shows financial instruments recognised at fair value, analysed between those

whose fair value is based on:

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from

prices) (Level 2) and;

those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

2018

Financial assets at fair value through
profitor loss
Financial assets held for trading
Equities

Participatory Notes

2017

Financial assets at fair value through
profitor loss
Financial assets held for trading
Equities

Participatory Notes

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$
30,214,212 3,662,639 - 33,876,851
- 5,427,463 - 5,427,463
30,214,212 9,090,102 - 39,304,314
34,484,143 - - 34,484,143
- 4,288,511 - 4,288,511
34,484,143 4,288,511 - 38,772,654
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15th January 2018
(Continued)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

When fair values of listed equities at the reporting date are based on quoted market prices
or binding dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions), without any deduction for
transaction costs, the instruments are included within Level 1 of the hierarchy. When the
Sub-Fund has assets and liabilities with offsetting market risks, it uses mid-market prices
as a basis for establishing fair values for the offsetting risk positions and applies the bid
or ask price to the net open position as appropriate.

Securities which are not freely transferable, or which are not regularly traded, or which for
any other reason are subject to limited marketability, are valued at fair value. As at 15th
January 2018, the total value of securities valued as described above, amounted to
US$9,090,102 (2017: US$4,288,511). For these financial instruments, values are based on the
underlying securities® quoted market prices and are therefore included within Level 2.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Prospectus of the Fund sets out a comprehensive disclosure of the risks that the Fund
faces and readers of these financial statements should therefore refer to the Prospectus to
ensure they have a full understanding of these risks. Purely for the purposes of these
financial statements and to facilitate compliance with accounting standards, the main risks
arising from the Fund®s investment strategies and measures thereof can be summarised as
follows:

Market Price Risk

Market price risk arises from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held.
It represents the potential loss the Sub-Fund might suffer through holding market positions
in the face of price movements. The Investment Manager employs a multi-layer approach to risk
management. The Schedule of Investments on pages 32 to 33 contains an analysis of the
portfolio by type of instrument and by geographical sector.

IT the official stock markets on which the units held by the Sub-Fund had increased by 5%
(2017: 5%) and the price of each equity investment had increased by 5%, whilst the foreign
currency rates held constant, there would have been the following approximate increase in Net
Assets attributable to Holders of equity units:

2018: US$1,965,216 (5.33%) 2017: US$1,938,633 (4.94%)
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15th January 2018
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market Price Risk (continued)

A decrease by 5% (2017: 5%) would result in an equal but opposite effect on Net Assets
attributable to Holders of equity units to the figures shown above, on the basis that all
other variables remain constant.

The above calculations are based on adjusting the fair value of listed equities as at 15th
January 2018 and 2017. The Investment Manager considers a 5% movement as an assumption for
the above analysis due to the investment security types held by the Sub-Fund. This represents
the Investment Manager®"s view of a reasonable assumptive movement for a 12 month period based
on current market conditions.

Limitations of Sensitivity Analysis
The analysis is based on historical data and does not account for the fact that future
market price movements, correlations between markets and levels of market liquidity in
conditions of market stress may bear no relation to historical patterns.
The market price risk information is a relative estimate of risk rather than a precise and
accurate number.
The market price risk information represents a hypothetical outcome and is not intended to
be predictive.
Future market conditions could vary significantly from those experienced in the past.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk represents the potential losses that the Sub-Fund might suffer due to
adverse movements in relevant interest rates. The financial instruments of the Sub-Fund are
not exposed directly to interest rate risk. The majority of the cash balances held by the
Sub-Fund bear interest at a floating rate. The Investment Manager considers the interest rate
risk to be minimal.

Currency Risk

The Sub-Fund holds assets denominated in currencies other than the US$, the functional
currency. It is therefore exposed to currency risk, as the value of the securities
denominated in other currencies will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. The Sub-
Fund®s policy is not to enter into any currency hedging transactions.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15th January 2018
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Currency Risk (continued)

Currency risks in emerging markets are correlated with sovereign risks, such that episodes of
currency trauma coincide with perceptions of political and financial sector vulnerability, as
well as the ability to meet external debt obligations. The Investment Manager assumes the
full currency risk in the equity portfolios and attempts to control for major event risks,
but not to systematically hedge currency. The Investment Manager states that to do so is
impractical because of the undeveloped state of local interest rate markets especially at the
long end of the yield curve, the existence of residual capital controls, the relatively high
foreign currency trading cost and limited market liquidity.

A substantial portion of the Sub-Fund"s assets are invested in currencies other than US$ and
any income received by the Sub-Fund from these investments will be received in those

currencies, some of which may fall in value against the US$. The Sub-Fund calculates its NAV
in US$, and there is therefore a currency exchange risk, which may affect the value of units.

The currency exposure of the Sub-Fund®s investments and cash are set out as follows:

2018 2018 2017 2017

Non-Monetary Monetary Non-Monetary Monetary

uss us$ Us$ Uss$

Brazilian Real 5,083,781 - 5,365,679 452
Euro - 34,293 - 25,567
Hong Kong Dol lar 9,917,137 34,037 7,411,125 927
Hungarian Forint - 130 - 113
Pound Sterling - 6,922 - 6,127
Taiwan Dol lar 1,665,301 92,413 1,308,616 58,797
16,666,219 167,795 14,085,420 91,983
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15th January 2018
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Currency Risk (continued)

At the year end, had the US$ weakened by 5% in relation to the above currencies, total equity
and the comprehensive income for the year per the Statement of Comprehensive Income would
have changed by the amounts:

2018 2018 2017 2017

Non-Monetary Monetary Non-Monetary Monetary

US$ US$ Us$ Us$

Brazilian Real 254,189 - 268,284 23
Euro - 1,715 - 1,278
Hong Kong Dol lar 495,857 1,702 370,556 46
Hungarian Forint - 7 - 6
Pound Sterling - 346 - 306
Taiwan Dol lar 83,265 4,620 65,431 2,940
833,311 8,390 704,271 4,599

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet a
commitment that it has entered into and cause the Sub-Fund to incur financial losses. The
Sub-Fund is exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk
of settlement default.

SMT Trustees (lreland) Limited as Depositary has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited
as its custodian. Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited have, in turn, appointed BBH as their
sub-custodian. Both the cash and securities are ultimately held at BBH with cash being held
at BBH as banker. The Sub-Fund has elected to enter into a BBH sweep programme which means
that BBH will sweep cash into overnight eligible bank counterparty accounts in order to
diversify overnight exposure and/or to gain interest on the various accounts. The Sub-Fund
acknowledges that participation in cash management service involves investment risks (such as
the loss of any balances swept) and it also accepts the sovereign and counterparty risks
associated with offshore overnight time deposits. BBH has a Fitch credit rating of A+ (2017:
A+).
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15th January 2018
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)

Impairment provisions are provided for losses that have been incurred by the year end date,
if any. The Sub-Fund may not hold more than 10% of any class of security issued by any single
issuer. The Sub-Fund invests in financial assets, which have an investment grade as rated by
a well-known rating agency. For unrated assets a rating is assigned using an approach that is
consistent with rating agencies.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk represents the possibility that the Sub-Fund may not be able to rapidly adjust
the size of its investment position in times of high volatility and financial stress at a
reasonable price in order to meet its liabilities.

The main liability of the Sub-Fund is the redemption of any units that investors may wish to
sell. Units can be redeemed on any dealing day that the redemption request is received and
accepted by the AIFM.

The Investment Manager typically determines the liquidity of an emerging market by assessing
the average daily trading volume over the last three months. The Investment Manager also
applies their theory that market liquidity is usually available in rising markets and lacking
in declining ones. Liquidity considerations are one factor in determining the constituents of
their portfolio, this affords the Investment Manager the flexibility in making changes to
country or security weights as conditions warrant. The Investment Manager®s emerging markets
traders implement portfolio changes in a manner that minimises market impact, this
minimisation of market impact is a key consideration. Expected annual turnover is 50%.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15th January 2018
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

The table below analyses for the Sub-Fund the financial liabilities and net settled
derivatives into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the year end
date to the contractual maturity date:

Less than 1 month Total
2018 Uss$ Uss$
Liabilities
Total equity 36,849,900 36,849,900
Creditors 3,280,942 3,280,942
Total Liabilities 40,130,842 40,130,842
2017
Liabilities
Total equity 39,237,422 39,237,422
Creditors 240,659 240,659
Total Liabilities 39,478,081 39,478,081

CASH AT BANK

Cash at bank is held with BBH who retains a security interest over the assets of the Fund, up
to the value of any advances or borrowings.

DEBTORS
2018 2017
Us$ uss
Interest receivable 193 40
Dividends receivable 112,244 182,914
Receivable for investments sold 68,160 25,719
Receivable for fund units sold - 9,890
Other receivables 5,839 15
186,436 218,578
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15th January 2018

(Continued)
CREDITORS
2018 2017
us$ uss
Interest payable 8 6
Payable for investments purchased 108,955 -
Payable for fund units repurchased 66,255 69,863
Distributions payable 2,914,820 -
Fees payable (Note 10) 190,904 170,790
3,280,942 240,659
UNITS ISSUED AND REDEEMED DURING THE YEAR
2018 2017
Number of units outstanding at start of year 3,967,900 4,607,170
Number of units issued 276,180 104,900
Number of units redeemed (1,329,260) (744,170)
Number of units outstanding at end of year 2,914,820 3,967,900

. FEES AND EXPENSES

The Sub-Fund pays to the AIFM a monthly fee, accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears, at
an annual rate of 1.88% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund (plus VAT, if any). The AIFM pays each
relevant party"s fees out of its fee.

The AIFM is entitled to be repaid all of its administration expenses out of the assets of the
Sub-Fund which shall include legal fees, courier®s fees, reasonable out-of-pocket expenses of
the Investment Manager and telecommunication costs and expenses. Unitholders are advised that
the total of all such expenses, which are charged at normal commercial rates, may constitute
a significant charge to the Sub-Fund.

The Sub-Fund pays to the Depositary out of the AIFM"s fee, a fee accrued daily and payable
monthly, at an annual rate of 0.07% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund. The Depositary is entitled to
be repaid out of the assets of the Sub-Fund all of its reasonable out-of-pocket expenses,
including the costs of the sub-custodian.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15th January 2018
(Continued)

FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)

The Sub-Fund pays to the Investment Manager, out of the AIFM"s fee, a fee accrued daily and
payable monthly, at an annual rate of 0.90% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund.

The Sub-Fund pays to the Distributor, out of the AIFM"s fee, a fee accrued daily and payable
monthly, at an annual rate of 0.70% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund.

The Sub-Fund pays to the Agent Company out of the AIFM*s fee, a fee accrued daily and payable
monthly, at an annual rate of 0.10% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund.

The fees payable are as follows:

2018 2017

USs$ uss

Investment Manager fees 43,044 42,915
Distributor and Agent Security fees 38,261 38,147
Administration fees 5,277 5,274
Depositary fees 3,355 3,353
Sub-Custodian fees 27,385 22,189
Audit fees 28,098 25,428
Other expenses 45,484 33,484
190,904 170,790

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The AIFM, Depositary, Investment Manager, Distributor/Agent Company and the sole unitholder
are deemed to be related parties under FRS 102. Fees incurred with related parties during the
year are disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and amounts payable to related
parties at the year end are disclosed in Note 10. Daiwa Securities Co. Limited, the Sub-
Fund®s Distributor in Japan, is the sole unitholder as of 15th January 2018 and 2017.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15th January 2018
(Continued)

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

In accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank AIF Rulebook, all transactions
carried out with the Fund by the AIFM, Depositary and Investment Manager or by delegates or
group companies (“ connected parties” ) must be carried out as if negotiated at arm"s length
and be in the best interests of unitholders. The AIFM is satisfied that there are
arrangements in place (evidenced by written procedures) to ensure that the obligations set
out above are applied to all transactions with connected parties and transactions with
connected parties entered into during the year complied with the obligations.

DIVIDENDS
The AIFM is entitled to declare a dividend out of all net interest, dividends and other
income received by the Sub-Fund. The AIFM declared a dividend of US$2,914,820 (US$2,914,820

at US$1.00 per Unit declared) on 16th January 2018 and paid on 18th January 2018. The AIFM did
not declare a dividend for the year ended 15th January 2017.
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15th January 2018
(Continued)

- NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2018 2017
Uss$ Uss$
Net realised gain from:
- Investments in securities and currencies 5,191,890 625,612
- Forward foreign currency contracts 129 130
5,192,019 625,742
Net realised loss from:
- Investments in securities and currencies (1,587,051) (2,702,475)
- Forward foreign currency contracts (659) (266)
(1,587,710) (2,702,741)
Net change in unrealised gain from:
- Investments in securities and currencies 9,605,936 14,555,634
Dividends on investments 1,015,162 997,714
Coupon on debt securities and interest 3,112 809
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit 14,228,519 13,477,158
or loss
. NAV HISTORY
2018 2017 2016
Dealiing NAV (US$) 39,764,720 39,237,422 32,263,256
Distributions payable (2,914,820) - -
NAV per financial statements (US$) 36,849,900 39,237,422 32,263,256
Number of units 2,914,820 3,967,900 4,607,170
Dealing NAV per unit (US$) 13.64 9.89 7.00
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Notes to the Financial Statements
15th January 2018
(Continued)

15_ TAXATION

Under current law and practice the Fund qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in
Section 739B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. On that basis, it is not
chargeable to Irish tax on its income or gains.

However, lIrish tax may arise on the happening of a“ chargeable event” . A chargeable event
includes any distribution payments to unitholders or any encashment, redemption,
cancellation, transfer or the holding of units at the end of each eight year period beginning
with the acquisition of such units.

No Irish tax will arise on the Fund in respect of chargeable events in respect of:

(a) a unitholder who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax
purposes, at the time of the chargeable event, provided appropriate valid declarations in
accordance with the provisions of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended, are held by
the Fund or where the Fund has been authorised by Irish Revenue to make gross payments in
absence of appropriate declarations; and

(b) certain exempted Irish tax resident unitholders who have provided the Fund with the
necessary signed statutory declarations.

The Finance Act 2010 provides that the Revenue Commissioners may grant approval for
investment funds marketed outside of Ireland to make payments to non-resident investors
without deduction of Irish tax where no relevant declaration is in place, subject to meeting
the" equivalent measures” . A fund wishing to receive approval must apply in writing to the
Revenue Commissioners, confirming compliance with the relevant conditions.

Dividends, interest and capital gains (if any) received on investments made by the Fund may

be subject to withholding taxes imposed by the country from which the investment income/gains
are received and such taxes may not be recoverable by the Fund or its unitholders.
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(Continued)

16. EXCHANGE RATES USED IN THIS REPORT

The following exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into one US

Dollar:

2018 2017
Brazilian Real - 3.1880
Euro 0.8147 0.9394
Hong Kong Dol lar 7.8235 7.7547
Hungarian Forint 251.6500 289.0400
Pound Sterling 0.7249 0.8183
Taiwan Dol lar 29.5370 31.5570

17. SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Fund does not have any soft commission arrangements.

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no other events subsequent to the year end up to the date of approving the
financial statements on 10th May 2018, which require disclosure in the financial statements.

19. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the AIFM approved the financial statements on 10th May 2018.
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NEW MAJOR ECONOMIES FUND

Schedule of Investments
15th January 2018

o . Fair % of
Equities ”gTé?ﬁé Va&gg LXV
Bermuda (2017: 1.64%)

Brilliance China Automotive Holdings 294,000 737,302 2.00
737,302 2.00
Brazil (2017: 25.00%)
Ambev SA 175,800 1,184,281 3.21
Banco Bradesco SA ADR 191,500 2,106,500 5.72
CCR SA 65,000 325,568 0.88
Cielo SA 45,704 343,521 0.93
I'tau Unibanco Holdings ADR 148,710 2,099,785 5.70
Lojas Americanas SA 77,020 287,528 0.78
Petroleo Brasileiro SA Petrobras 257,524 1,389,460 3.77
Raia Drogasil SA 13,000 350,705 0.95
Vale SA 88,551 1,202,718 3.26
9,290,066 25.20
Cayman Islands (2017: 12.54%)
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd 3,289 617,641 1.68
Baidu Inc 2,300 581,992 1.58
China Resources Land Ltd 41,777 137,503 0.37
New Oriental ED & Technology GP Inc 4,300 451,156 1.22
Sands China Ltd 137,200 771,624 2.10
Sino Biopharmaceutical 410,000 778,756 2.11
Tal Education Group CL A USD 20,900 649,572 1.76
Tencent Holdings Ltd 57,500 3,183,869 8.64
7,172,113 19.46
China (2017: 2.41%)
China Construction Bank - H 1,792,000 1,795,779 4.87
China Vanke Co 58,900 290,980 0.79
Ping An Insurance - H 97,000 1,093,552 2.97
3,180,311 8.63
Hong Kong (2017: 5.04%)
AIA Group Ltd 68,400 588,397 1.60
China Unicom (Hong Kong) Ltd 390,000 539,375 1.46

1,127,772 3.06
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NEW MAJOR ECONOMIES FUND

Schedule of Investments
15th January 2018

Equities (continued)

India (2017: 14.79%)
Gail IndialLtd

HDFC Bank
Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd

Russian Federation (2017: 19.23%)
Magnit PJSC

MMC Norilsk Nickel PJSC ADR
Mobile Telesystems PJSC

0il Company Lukoil PIJSCE/C

Oil Company Lukoil PJSC US
Sberbank of Russia PJSC

Taiwan Province of China (2017: 7.24%)
Delta Electronics Inc

Largan Precision Co

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing TWD
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing USD

Total Equities (2017: 87.89%)

Participatory Notes

India (2017: 10.93%)

HDFC Bank Japan JP CW-19 02-Jul-19
Indusind Bank Ltd PN CS 02-Aug-21
Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd PN CS 05-Aug-19
Power Grid Corp of India PN CS 02-Aug-21

Netherlands (2017: 0.00%)
Hindustan Petroleum JPM CW19 08-Aug-19

Total Participatory Notes (2017: 10.93%)

(Continued)

Nominal
Holding

17,545
2,800
34,952

17,783
61,859
36,000
12,328
21,360
863,167

124,000
4,000
67,000
24,400

61,958
45,613
105,740
253,134

47,475
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Fair

% of

Value
Us$ NAV
815,843 2.22
286,804 0.78
421,172 1.14
1,523,819 4.14
514,996 1.40
1,281,100 3.48
394,200 1.07
850,385 2.31
1,471,811 3.99
3,662,639 9.94
8,175,131 22.19
575,143 1.56
545,756 1.48
544,402 1.48
1,005,036 2.73
2,670,337 7.25
33,876,851 91.93
1,843,870 5.00
1,208,220 3.28
1,263,931 3.43
794,309 2.16
5,110,330 13.87
317,133 0.86
317,133 0.86
5,427,463 14.73
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
NEW MAJOR ECONOMIES FUND
Schedule of Portfolio Movements (Unaudited)
15th January 2018

Acquisition Quantity Disposal Quantity
AIA Group Ltd - 115,200
Alibaba Group Holdings Ltd - 3,711
Baidu Inc 2,900 2,900
Banco Bradesco SA ADR - 76,300
Bharat Petroleum JPM CW-17 13-Dec-17 34,076 -
Brilliance China Automotive Holdings - 246,000
China Construction Bank - H 2,308,000 -
China Mobile Ltd - 53,000
China Unicom (Hong Kong) Ltd 492,000 -
China Vanke Co 58,900 -
Delta Electronics Inc 159,000 -
Gail IndiaLtd 19,521 -
HDFC Bank 10,400 11,100
HDCF Bank Japan JP CW-17 06-Feb-17 - 69,026
HDFC Bank Japan JP CW-19 02-Jul-19 69,026 -
Hindustan Petroleum JPM CW19 08-Aug-19 71,213 -
Icici Bank ADR - 220,700
Indusind Bank Ltd PN CS 02-Aug-21 34,860 33,596
Infosys Ltd ADR - 94,500
I'tau Unibanco Holdings ADR 15,600 54,100
Largan Precision Co - 3,000
Mahindra and Mahindra Ltd 31,585 22,955
MMC Norilsk Nickel PJSC 13,581 -
New Oriental ED & Technology GP Inc 6,300 -
0il Company Lukoil PJSC US 13,106 -
CIABrasiliera DISTR(PAO DE ACUCAR) - 36,400
Petroleo Brasileiro SA Petrobras 76,546 -
Ping An Insurance - H - 86,500
Sberbank of Russia PJSC 111,356 247,360
Reliance Industries GDR LI Line - 55,922
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing USD - 27,900
Tal Education Group CL A USD 29,400 -
Tencent Holdings Ltd - 36,600
Vale SA 62,780 -

This schedule shows the 20 largest acquisitions and 20 largest disposals in the year as required
by the Central Bank of Ireland. It is not intended to provide a reconciliation between holdings
at the beginning of the year and holdings at the end of the year.
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2018
( ) ( )
35,075,524.09 3,835,509
180,197.17 19,705
34,895,326.92 3,815,804
2,896,360
12.05 1,318
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6,250 82 7,438

2012 40

2013 40

2014 40 500

2014 22 40 2,350

2015 25 40 2,850

2016 25 40 6,250

2017 40 6,250
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2018
1,914,480,375.98 1,043,151,436.89 4,805,527.87 61,636,778.18
277,668,183.05 63,970,121,920 1,331,607,184.38

1,698,535,311.01

1,001,498,659.63

44,442 ,608.58

277,668,183.05

215,945,064.97

41,652,777.26

4,805,527.87

17,194,169.60

63,970,121,920

1,331,607,184.38
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30
2017 30 2016 30
4,090,719 541,570 6,322,020 836,972
547,678 72,507 887,552 117,503
4,638,397 614,077 7,209,572 954,475
4,581,518 606,547 3,970,839 525,699
31,495,002 4,169,635 36,956,305 4,892,645
36,076,610 4,776,182 40,927,144 5,418,345
10 (3.665,221) (485,239) (3,640,131) (481,917)
32,411,389 4,290,944 37,287,013 4,936,428
37,049,786 4,905,021 44,496,585 5,890,903
11 62,992,338 8,339,556 62,992,338 8,339,556
12 4,050,000 536,180 4,050,000 536,180
172,746 22,870 27,498 3,640
(30,165,298) (3,993,584) (22,573,251) (2,988,473)
37,049,786 4,905,021 44,496,585 5,890,903
2018 25
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30

2017 30 2016 30

20,872,475 2,763,307 16,959, 480 2,245,266

(28,464,330) (3,768,393) (23,469,569) (3,107,136)

(7,591,855) (1,005,086) (6,510,089) (861,871)
4,127 546 9,191 1,217

(7,587,728) (1,004,539) (6,500,898) (860, 654)
(4,319) 572) (5.,143) (681)

(7.592,047) (1,005,111) (6,506,041) (861,335)
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2017 30 2016 30

(7,592,047) (1,005,111) (6,506,041) (861,335)
165,998 21,976 133,502 17,674
(20,750) (2,747) (16,688) (2,209)
145,248 19,229 116,814 15,465

(7,446,799) (985,882) (6,389,227) (845,870)
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62,992,338 4,050,000 27,498 (22,573,251) 44,496,585
(7,592,047)  (7,592,047)

145,248 145,248

145,248 (7,592,047)  (7,446,799)

62,992,338 4,050,000 172,746 (30,165,298) 37,049,786
28,992,338 4,050,000 (89,316)  (16,067,210) 16,885,812
(6,506,041)  (6,506,041)

116,814 116,814

116,814 (6,506,041)  (6,389,227)

34,000,000 34,000,000
34,000,000 34,000,000
62,992,338 4,050,000 27,498 (22,573,251) 44,496,585
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2013 2013

2016 25
3,400 3,400
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2017 30 2016 30
18,293,938 16,143,194
10,170,392 7,326,375
28,464,330 23,469,569

2017 30 2016 30
13,632,372 12,130,330

1,434,417 1,325,339

952,119 879,039
2,275,030 1,808,486
18,293,938 16,143,194

225 2016 228

SMTTIL

2017 30 2016 30

204,360 217,080
845,328 713,494
9,209

23,000 23,000
7,650 4,050
92,800 86,000
658,828 517,382
2,231,301 371,884
1,087,199 944,334
39,276 65,444
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2017 30 2016 30
(4,319) (5,143)
(4,319) (5,143)
2017 30 2016 30
20,750 16,688
2017 30 2016 30
(7,587,728) (6,500,898)
2016 12.5 (948, 466) (812,612)
211,990 (38,329)
1,154 1,538
(442) 1,355
36,943
740,083 816,248
(4,319) (5,143)
63,807 59,206
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2017 30
2016 30 6,693,904 6,693,904
2017 30 6,693,904 6,693,904
2016 30 371,884 371,884
2,231,301 2,231,301
2017 30 2,603,185 2,603,185
2017 30 4,090,719 4,090,719
2016 30
2015 30 5,050,115 5,050,115
1,643,789 1,643,789
2016 30 6,693,904 6,693,904
2015 30
371,884 371,884
2016 30 371,884 371,884
2016 30 6,322,020 6,322,020

Advent Geneva and Paladyne
2016
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2017 30
2016 30 1,304,537 1,362,635 3,006,058 5,763,230
13,241 89,785 215,928 318,954

2017 30 1,317,778 1,452,420 3,311,986 6,082,184
2016 30 1,228,006 1,212,990 2,434,682 4,875,678
31,964 101,626 525,238 658,828

2017 30 1,259,970 1,314,616 2,959,920 5,534,506
2017 30 57,808 137,804 352,066 547,678

2016 30
2015 30 1,837,618 1,289,863 2,913,862 6,041,343
18,853 72,772 182,196 273,821
(551,934) (551,934)
2016 30 1,304,537 1,362,635 3,096,058 5,763,230
2015 30 1,752,118 1,089,750 2,068,362 4,910,230
27,822 123,240 366,320 517,382
(551,934) (551,934)
2016 30 1,228,006 1,212,990 2,434,682 4,875,678
2016 30 76,531 149,645 661,376 887,552
2017 30 2016 30

2,375,071 1,857,607

1,032,216 1,397,797

76,914 106,712

237,100 217,401

860,217 368,551

22,771

4,581,518 3,970,839

4,523,568 2016 3,795,560
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100,000,000

400,000
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2017 30 2016 30
31,495,092 36,956,305
31,495,092 36,956,305

2017 30 2016 30
2,250,804 1,764,189
167,995 430,752
12,422 158,721

2,298
821,593 821,593
410,109 464,876
3,665,221 3,640,131
PAYE 2016 290,376 181,702
59,269 2016 62,983

2017 30 2016 30
492,338 492,338
62,500,000 62,500,000
62,992,338 62,992,338

50,000,000 100,000,000 2016
3,400
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33

2017 30 2016 30
4,050,000 4,050,000
4,050,000 4,050,000

405
2013
2017 30 2016 30
1,106,428 53,116 1,032,381 63,135
3,857,594 119,511 3,821,244 128,754
4,672,516 5,573,659

9,636,538 172,627 10,427,284 191,889

2017 30 2016 30
952,119 879,039
65,298 52,849
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16
100 8233
17
2018 23
18
2017 30
1,650,000 €1,452,863 €81,709 (€5,042) €76,667
270,000,000 €2,151,357 €129,067 (€4,436) €124,631
160,000 €106,876 €2,366 €0 €2,366
£1,900,000 €2,162,722 €23,958 (€2,944) €21,014
€237,100 (€12,422) €224,678
2017 12 2018 30
220,646
2016 149,885 —
€237,100 €237,100
€237,100 €237,100
€12,422 €12,422
€12,422 €12,422
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2016 30
1,400,000 €1,240,159 €9,749 (€2,022) €7,727
265,000,000 €2,182,539 €7,501 (€153,643) (€146,142)
160,000 €104,187 €0 (€3,056) (€3,056)

£1,800,000 €2,268,706 €200,151 €0 €200,151
€217,401 (€158,721) €58, 680
2016 12 2017 30
€217,401 €217,401
€217,401 €217,401
€158,721 €158,721
€158,721 €158,721
19 2014
2014 357
357 2017 30
20
2018 25
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Statement of financial position

as at 30 September 2017
30 September 30 September
Note 2017 2016
€ €
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 6 4,090,719 6,322,020
Tangible fixed assets 7 547,678 887,552
4,638,397 7,209,572
Current assets
Debtors 8 4,581,518 3,970,839
Cash at bank and in hand 9 31,495,092 36,956,305
36,076,610 40,927,144
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 10 (3,665,221) (3,640,131)
Net current assets 32,411,389 37,287,013
Net assets 37,049,786 44,496,585
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 11 62,992,338 62,992,338
Additional paid in capital 12 4,050,000 4,050,000
Cash flow hedge reserve 172,746 27,498
Profit and loss account (30,165,298) (22,573,251)
Total Equity 37,049,786 44,496,585

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of financial position.

On behalf of the board

Director Director 25 January 2018

Hiromitsu Tanaka Shusaku Yamaguchi
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Income statement
for the year ended 30 September 2017

30 September 30 September

Note 2017 2016

€ €

Turnover 20,872,475 16,959,480
Administrative expenses 3 (28,464,330) (23,469,569)
Loss on ordinary activities before interest and taxation (7,591,855) (6,510,089)
Interest income 4,127 9,191
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation 4 (7,587,728) (6,500,898)
Taxation on ordinary activities 5 (4,319) (5,143)
Loss for the year (7,592,047) (6,506,041)

All results have been generated by continuing operations.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this income statement.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Statement of other comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 September 2017

30 September 30 September

Note 2017 2016

€ €

Loss for the year (7,592,047) (6,506,041)
Other comprehensive income

Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow 165,998 133,502

hedges

Income tax on other comprehensive income 5 (20,750) (16,688)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 145,248 116,814

Total comprehensive income for the year (7,446,799) (6,389,227)
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 September 2017

Balance at 1 October 2016

Total comprehensive income for the
period

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the
period

Total comprehensive income for the
period

Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity

Issue of Shares

Total contributions by and
distributions to owners

Balance at 30 September 2017

Balance at 1 October 2015

Total comprehensive income for the
period

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the
period

Total comprehensive income for the
period

Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity

Issue of Shares

Total contributions by and
distributions to owners

Balance at 30 September 2016

EDINETOOOO
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Called up Additional Cash flow Profit and Total
share paid in hedging loss account equity
capital Capital reserve
€ € € € €
62,992,338 4,050,000 27,498  (22,573,251) 44,496,585
- - - (7,592,047)  (7,592,047)
- - 145,248 - 145,248
- - 145,248 (7,592,047)  (7,446,799)
62,992,338 4,050,000 172,746 (30,165,298) 37,049,786
Called up Additional Cash flow Profit and Total
share paid in hedging loss account equity
capital Capital reserve
€ € € € €
28,992,338 4,050,000 (89,316) (16,067,210) 16,885,812
- - - (6,506,041)  (6,506,041)
- - 116,814 - 116,814
- - 116,814 (6,506,041)  (6,389,227)
34,000,000 - - - 34,000,000
34,000,000 - - - 34,000,000
62,992,338 4,050,000 27,498  (22,573,251) 44,496,585
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017

1 Accounting Policies

SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the" Company” ) with aregisteredoffice atBlock5, Harcourt Centre,
Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, is a private company limited by shares and incorporated and domiciled in Ireland.

The functional and presentation currency of these financial statements is Euro.

The Company®s immediate parent undertaking, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited includes the Company in
its consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
(lreland) Limited are available to the public and may be obtained from Block 5, Harcourt Centre, Harcourt
Road, Dublin 2, Ireland.

In these financial statements, the company is considered to be a qualifying entity (for the purposes of this
FRS) and has applied the exemptions available under FRS 102 in respect of the following disclosures:
Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding from the beginning to end of the period;
(9 Cash Flow Statement and related notes; and

Key Management Personnel compensation.

As the consolidated financial statements of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. include the equivalent
disclosures, the Company has also taken the exemptions under FRS 102 available in respect of the following
disclosures:

0

7 Certain disclosures required by FRS 102.26 Share Based Payments; and,

Ch

7] The disclosures required by FRS 102.11 Basic Financial Instruments and FRS 102.12 Other Financial
Instrument Issues in respect of financial instruments not falling within the fair value accounting rules
of Schedule 3, paragraph 39 of the Companies Act 2014.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements. On first time adoption of FRS 102, the Company has not
retrospectively changed its accounting under Irish GAAP for derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
before the date of transition, hedge accounting for any hedging relationships that no longer existed at the
date of transition, accounting estimates or discontinued operations.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

1 Accounting Policies - (continued)

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company are as follows:

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 (* "FRS 102" ") The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland and issued by the Financial Reporting
Council, and promulgated for use in Ireland by Chartered Accountants Ireland. The Company is also subject to the
requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis except for the modification to a fair
value basis for certain financial instruments as specified in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expense (e.g. useful economic life). The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the periods in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis.

Turnover and Administration Expenses

Turnover comprises fee income from administration and management services, which is accounted for on an
accruals basis. It also includes income earned from the recharge of services to other group companies.

Turnover and administration expenses are shown exclusive of amounts paid to other service providers. All
amounts are charged at normal commercial rates.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

1 Accounting Policies - (continued)

Foreign Currencies

The financial statements are expressed in Euro (€), which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company .

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at rates
which approximate the rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Share capital is translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of its issue.

Profits and losses arising from currency translation and on settlement of amounts receivable and payable in
foreign currencies are dealt with in the income statement.

Basic Financial Instruments

Trade and other debtors / creditors

Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at transaction price plus attributable transaction costs.
Trade and other creditors are recognised initially at transaction price less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses in the case of trade debtors.

Cash

Cash comprises cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

1 Accounting Policies - (continued)

Other financial instruments
Financial instruments not considered to be Basic financial instruments (Other financial instruments)

Other financial instruments not meeting the definition of Basic Financial Instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition other financial instruments are measured at fair
value with changes recognised in income statement except as follows:

- investments in equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair value cannot otherwise be
measured reliably shall be measured at cost less impairment; and

- hedging instruments in a designated hedging relationship shall be recognised as set out below.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in income statement. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting,
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged (see below).

Cash flow hedges

Cash flow hedges are used to cover the Company®s exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable
to particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment which could affect
income or expenses. Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in
cash flows of a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part
of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in Other comprehensive
income (* OCI” ). Any ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised immediately in income statement.

For cash flow hedges, where the forecast transactions resulted in the recognition of a non-financial asset or
non-financial liability, the hedging gain or loss recognised in OCl is included in the initial cost or other
carrying amount of the asset or liability. Alternatively when the hedged item is recognised in income
statement the hedging gain or loss is reclassified to income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity discontinues designation
of the hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss at that point remains in equity and is recognised in accordance with the above policy when the
transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the cumulative unrealised
gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised in the income statement immediately.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

1 Accounting Policies - (continued)

Taxation

Tax on the income statement for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive
income, in which case it is recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences which arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax
assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements. The
following timing differences are not provided for: differences between accumulated depreciation and tax
allowances for the cost of a fixed asset if and when all conditions for retaining the tax allowances have
been met, to the extent that it is not probable that they will reverse in the foreseeable future and the
reporting entity is able to control the reversal of the timing difference. Deferred tax is not recognised on
permanent differences arising because certain types of income or expense are non-taxable or are disallowable
for tax or because certain tax charges or allowances are greater or smaller than the corresponding income or
expense.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the reversal of the related difference,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax balances are not
discounted.

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that is it probable
that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

A deferred tax asset is recorded where it is more likely than not to be recoverable. The recoverability of
deferred tax assets is assessed annually by the directors.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

1 Accounting Policies - (continued)

Intangible assets

Research and development

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities may be capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Company intends and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to
complete development, future economic benefits are probable and if the Company can measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development. Development activities involve the
design, construction or testing of the production of new or substantially improved products or processes. The
expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and capitalised borrowing costs. Other development expenditure is recognised in the income
statement as an expense as incurred. Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is charged in equal instalments on the cost of assets over their expected useful lives and is
included within administration costs.

Software 3 years

Asset values are closely monitored and are subject to provisions for impairment where necessary. Assets in
the course of development are not amortised until they are brought into use.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is charged in equal instalments on
the cost of assets over their expected useful lives and is included within administration costs.

Furniture and equipment 5 years
Software 3 years
Mainframe Equipment 3 years
Personal Computers 2 years
Computer Terminals 3 years
Fund administration system 3 years

Asset values are closely monitored and are subject to provisions for impairment where necessary.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

1 Accounting Policies - (continued)

Employee benefits

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for employees. Obligations for contributions to
defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement when they are due.

Additional paid in capital

Subordinated Loans of €4.05 million previously received from the Company®s parent, that are non-interest
bearing and repayable at the Company®s discretion, were reclassified as capital during 2013, after a review
of their terms and conditions, and the receipt during 2013 of confirmation from the Company®"s parent and that
these amounts are repayable solely at the volition of the Company and that the Company®s parent will not
demand repayment of these amounts.

2 Ownership and operations

The Company, which is engaged in the provision of administration and management company services to various
funds, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited, a company incorporated in the
Republic of Ireland. The ultimate parent company 1is Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. a company
incorporated in Japan.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, and it is the intention of the directors to
continue to develop the activities of the Company in consultation with its parent. Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank
Limited is directly supporting the business development of the Company. On 25 January 2016, the Company
issued new share capital of 34 million €1 ordinary shares, upon the receipt of an investment of €34 million
from its parent company Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited.

The Company has entered into agreements with various entities to which it provides services. Under these

agreements, the Company has undertaken to provide administration and management company services for an
agreed fee.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

3 Administrative expenses

30 September

30 September

2017 2016

€ €

Staff costs 18,293,938 16,143,194
Other administrative expenses 10,170,392 7,326,375
28,464,330 23,469,569

30 September

30 September

2017 2016
€ €

Staff costs comprise:
Wages and salaries 13,632,372 12,130,330
Social welfare costs 1,434,417 1,325,339
Pension costs 952,119 879,039
Other costs 2,275,030 1,808,486
18,293,938 16,143,194

The average number of persons employed by the Company (including directors) during the year was 225

(September 2016:

The Company shared the use of facilities with SMT Trustees (lIreland) Limited

(* SMTTIL” ) during the period. The related costs were allocated and recharged on an agreed basis, as set out

in service level agreements.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

4 Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

The loss on ordinary activities before taxation has been determined after charging the following:

30 September 30 September
2017 2016
€ €
Directors”™ remuneration:
Fees 204,360 217,080
Other remuneration 845,328 713,494
Defined pension contribution scheme - 9,209
No retirement benefits are accruing for directors.
Auditor®s remuneration:
Audit 23,000 23,000
Tax advisory services 7,650 4,050
Other assurance services 92,800 86,000
Depreciation 658,828 517,382
Amortisation of intangibles 2,231,301 371,884
Operating lease rentals:
Land & buildings 1,087,199 944,334
Other assets 39,276 65,444
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

5 Taxation on ordinary activities
30 September 30 September
2017 2016
€ €
(a) Total tax expense recognised in the income
statement
Current tax
Current tax on income for the period - -
Under /(over) provision in respect of prior year - -
Deferred taxation
Under / (Over) provision in prior period - -
Origination and reversal of timing differences (4,319) (5,143)
Total tax expense (4,319) (5,143)

30 September

30 September

2017 2016
€ €

(b) Total tax expense recognised in OCI
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 20,750 16,688

(c) Tax reconciliation

30 September

30 September

2017 2016
€ €
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (7,587,728) (6,500,898)
Corporation tax based on standard rate at 12.5%
(September 2016: 12.5%) (948,466) (812,612)
Deficiency / (Excess) of depreciation over capital 211,990 (38,329)
allowances
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,154 1,538
Differences arising from tax at the higher rate (442) 1,355
Group relief (claimed) / surrendered - 36,943
Losses carried forward 740,083 816,248
Total tax charge (4,319) (5,143)
Income tax on health insurance premiums 63,807 59,206

The Income tax on health insurance premiums is included in other costs as per note 3 above.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

6 Intangible Fixed Assets

As at 30 September 2017

Software Total
€ €

Cost
At 30 September 2016 6,693,904 6,693,904
Additions during year - -
Disposals during year - -
At 30 September 2017 6,693,904 6,693,904
Amortisation
At 30 September 2016 371,884 371,884
Amortisation for year 2,231,301 2,231,301
Disposals during year - -
At 30 September 2017 2,603,185 2,603,185
Net book value at 30 September 2017 4,090,719 4,090,719
As at 30 September 2016

Software Total

€ €

Cost
At 30 September 2015 5,050,115 5,050,115
Additions during year 1,643,789 1,643,789
Disposals during year - -
At 30 September 2016 6,693,904 6,693,904
Amortisation
At 30 September 2015 - -
Amortisation for year 371,884 371,884
Disposals during year - -
At 30 September 2016 371,884 371,884
Net book value at 30 September 2016 6,322,020 6,322,020

The intangible asset relates to the development of the project to implement Advent Geneva and Paladyne as the
core fund administration system. The system went live on the 1 August 2016.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

7 Tangible Fixed Assets

As at 30 September 2017

Furniture & Software Computer Total
Equipment Equipment
€ € € €
Cost
At 30 September 2016 1,304,537 1,362,635 3,096,058 5,763,230
Additions during year 13,241 89,785 215,928 318,954
Disposals during year - - - -
At 30 September 2017 1,317,778 1,452,420 3,311,986 6,082,184
Depreciation
At 30 September 2016 1,228,006 1,212,990 2,434,682 4,875,678
Depreciation for year 31,964 101,626 525,238 658,828
Disposals during year - - - -
At 30 September 2017 1,259,970 1,314,616 2,959,920 5,534,506
Net book value at 30 September 2017 57,808 137,804 352,066 547,678
As at 30 September 2016
Furniture & Software Computer Total
Equipment Equipment
€ € € €
Cost
At 30 September 2015 1,837,618 1,289,863 2,913,862 6,041,343
Additions during year 18,853 72,772 182,196 273,821
Disposals during year (551,934) - - (551,934)
At 30 September 2016 1,304,537 1,362,635 3,096,058 5,763,230
Depreciation
At 30 September 2015 1,752,118 1,089,750 2,068,362 4,910,230
Depreciation for year 27,822 123,240 366,320 517,382
Disposals during year (551,934) - - (551,934)
At 30 September 2016 1,228,006 1,212,990 2,434,682 4,875,678
Net book value at 30 September 2016 76,531 149,645 661,376 887,552
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

8 Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

30 September

30 September

2017 2016

€ €

Fee debtors 2,375,071 1,857,607
Prepayments and accrued income 1,032,216 1,397,797
Other debtors 76,914 106,712
Short term asset on derivatives 237,100 217,401
Amount owed by related companies 860,217 368,551
Deferred tax - 22,771
4,581,518 3,970,839

In addition, the Company has a further unrecognised deferred tax asset of €4,523,568 (September 2016: €
3,795,560). This has not been recognised due to the level of uncertainty over the timing of its recovery.

9 Cash at bank and in hand

30 September 30 September

2017 2016

€ €

Cash at bank and in hand 31,495,092 36,956,305
31,495,092 36,956,305
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

10 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

30 September

30 September

2017 2016

€ €

Accruals 2,250,804 1,764,189
Corporation tax - -
Trade creditors 167,995 430,752
Short term liability on derivatives 12,422 158,721
Deferred tax 2,298 -
Amount owed to parent 821,593 821,593
Amount owed to related companies 410,109 464,876
3,665,221 3,640,131

Accruals include creditors in relation to PAYE of €307,205 (2016: €290,376), PRSI of €181,702 (2016: €
174,829) and other taxes of €59,269 (2016: €62,983).The amount owed to the parent company is unsecured and
interest free. The amount owed to the related companies includes a balance relating to services as outlined
in the services agreement. The balance is unsecured and interest free and repayable on demand.

11 Called up share capital

30 September 30 September
2017 2016
€ €
Authorised
400,000 ordinary shares of GBP £1 each
100,000,000 ordinary shares of EUR €1 each
Allotted, called up and fully paid
400,000 ordinary shares of GBP £1 each 492,338 492,338
62,500,000 ordinary shares of EUR €1 each 62,500,000 62,500,000
62,992,338 62,992,338

On 8 January 2016, the Company increased its authorised share capital from 50,000,000 to 100,000,000 ordinary
shares of Euro 1 each. On 25 January 2016, the Company issued new share capital of 34 million €1 shares, upon
the receipt of an investment of €34 million from its parent company Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ireland) Limited.
The proceeds of the allotment will be used to fund the continued development of the Company business.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

12 Additional paid in capital

30 September 30 September

2017 2016

€ €

Additional paid in capital 4,050,000 4,050,000
4,050,000 4,050,000

In connection with €4.05 million of the total amounts received to date by the Company under the terms of the
subordinated loan arrangements for the non-interest bearing loans, the Directors noted the resolution made in
September 2013 by Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ireland) Limited (the* Parent Company” ) that they would not demand
repayment of the loans and that they are repayable solely at the volition of the Company. Accordingly, as
these amounts have now been confirmed as non repayable and do not bear interest or carry any other economic
obligation they were re-classified on the statement of financial position from long-term liabilities to
capital, in order to better reflect the capital nature of the transactions.

13 Commitments

Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

30 September 30 September

2017 2016
Land and Other Land and Other

buildings buildings
€ € € €

Operating leases which expire:

Within one year 1,106,428 53,116 1,032,381 63,135
In the second to fifth years inclusive 3,857,594 119,511 3,821,244 128,754
Over five years 4,672,516 - 5,573,659 -
9,636,538 172,627 10,427,284 191,889

Under an agreement, the Company has undertaken to provide or procure company secretarial and general
administration and support service to SMT Trustees (Ireland) Limited. In return, the Company has agreed that

a fee will be paid for the services provided.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

14 Pension costs

30 September 30 September

2017 2016

€ €

Pensions charge for year 952,119 879,039
Pension charge payable at end of year 65,298 52,849

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for its executive directors and employees.

15 Related parties

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. whose consolidated financial
statements are publicly available. The Company is availing of the exemption under Section 33 of FRS 102°
Related Party Disclosures®™ to not disclose transactions with other group undertakings which would be

eliminated on consolidation in the financial statements of the group.

16 Ultimate parent company

The Company®s immediate parent undertaking is Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited, a company incorporated
in Ireland. The Company®s ultimate parent undertaking is Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc., a company
incorporated in Japan. The largest group in which the financial statements are consolidated is that headed by
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. Copies of the financial statements of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc.
are available to the public and may be obtained from 1-4-1 Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8233, Japan.

The smallest group in which the results of the company are consolidated is that headed by Sumitomo Mitsui
Trust (Ireland) Limited. Copies of the financial statements of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ireland) Limited are
available to the public and may be obtained from Block 5, Harcourt Centre, Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, lreland.

17 Post balance sheet events

On 23 January 2018, Mr Keiji Nakamura was approved by the Central Bank of lIreland as a director and appointed
to the board.

There were no other post balance sheet events which require amendment to or disclosure in the financial
statements.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

18 Financial instruments - Hedge accounting

The following forward foreign currency contracts were open as at 30 September 2017.

B _ Total
Buy Euro UnrealéZ?g Unre?:;2§§ Unrealised
Gain / (Loss)
Sell US Dollar
$1,650,000 €1,452,863 €81,709 (€5,042) €76,667
Sell Japanese Yen
\270,000,000 €2,151,357 €129,067 (€4,436) €124,631
Sell Australian Dollar
$160,000 €106,876 €2,366 €0 €2,366
Sell British Pounds
£1,900,000 €2,162,722 €23,958 (€2,944) €21,014
€237,100 (€12,422) €224,678

These cash flow hedges will settle quarterly over the period 1 December 2017 - 30 September 2018. The fair
value on the open contracts was calculated using WM Reuters forward fx rates. During the year a gain of €
220,646 (2016: loss of €149,885) was reclassified to the income statement, having previously been recorded in
the statement of other comprehensive income statement in accordance with the cash flow hedging policy. No
collateral exists for any derivative contracts.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets
Forward currency contracts €237,100 €237,100
Total - €237,100 - €237,100
Liabilities
Forward currency contracts €12,422 €12,422
Total - €12,422 - €12,422

Unrealised future gains and losses on these forward contracts have been recognised directly in the statement
of financial position and the statement of other comprehensive income (page 11), in accordance with the
Company*s cash flow hedge accounting policy.

150/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

18 Financial instruments - Hedge accounting (continued)

The following forward foreign currency contracts were open as at 30 September 2016.

B _ Total
Buy Euro UnrealéZ?g Unre?:;2§§ Unrealised
Gain / (Loss)
Sell US Dollar
$1,400,000 €1,240,159 €9,749 (€2,022) €7,727
Sell Japanese Yen
\265,000,000 €2,182,539 €7,501 (€153,643) (€146,142)
Sell Australian Dollar
$160,000 €104,187 €0 (€3,056) (€3,056)
Sell British Pounds
£1,800,000 €2,268,706 €200,151 €0 €200,151
€217,401 (€158,721) €58,680

These cash flow hedges settled quarterly over the period 1 December 2016 - 30 September 2017. The fair value
on the open contracts was calculated using WM Reuters forward fx rates.
No collateral exists for any derivative contracts.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets
Forward currency contracts €217,401 €217,401
Total - €217,401 - €217,401
Liabilities
Forward currency contracts €158,721 €158,721
Total - €158,721 - €158,721

Unrealised future gains and losses on these forward contracts have been recognised directly in the statement
of financial position and the statement of other comprehensive income (page 11), in accordance with the
Company*s cash flow hedge accounting policy.

151/224



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 (continued)

19 CGuarantee under Irish Companies Act, 2014

Under Section 357 (1) (b) of the Irish Companies Act, 2014 companies registered in lreland may be exempted
from filing their individual accounts provided that their liabilities are irrevocably guaranteed by a Parent
Company, which is required to be a registered Company of a Member State of the European Union. The Parent
Company must incorporate the results of the subsidiaries into its Group accounts. The results of the Company
have been consolidated into the results of the immediate Parent Company and Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited
has agreed to irrevocably guarantee the liabilities of the Company as at 30 September 2017, in accordance
with Section 357 of the Act.

20 Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 25 January 2018.
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2018 31
2018 31 2017 30

( ) « ) ( ) « )
3,281,154 434,392 4,090,719 541,570
542,639 71,840 547,678 72,507
3,823,793 506,232 4,638,397 614,077
4,144,456 548,685 3,462,939 458,458
1,252,118 165,768 860,218 113,884
0 0 0 0
24,659 3,265 21,261 2,815
85,198 11,279 237,100 31,390
30,314,795 4,013,376 31,495,092 4,169,635
35,821,226 4,742,372 36,076,610 4,776,182
(3,966,815) (525,167)  (2,447,878) (324,075)
0 0 0 0
(2,298) (304) (2,298) (304)
(1,230,623) (162,922)  (1,202,623) (159,215)
(56,341) (7,459) (12,422) (1,645)
34,388,942 4,552,752 37,049,786 4,905,021
62,992,338 8,339,556 62,992,338 8,339,556
4,050,000 536,180 4,050,000 536,180
(23,075) (3,055) 172,746 22,870
(30,165,298)  (3,993,584) (22,573,251)  (2,988,473)
(2,465,023) (326,344)  (7,592,047)  (1,005,111)
34,388,942 4,552,752 37,049,786 4,905,021
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2018 31
2018 31 2017 30
12
11,554,124 1,529,650 20,872,475 2,763,307
2,628 348 4,127 546
11,556,752 1,529,998 20,876,602 2,763,853
(14,021,775)  (1,856,343) (28,464,330)  (3,768,393)
() (2,465,023) (326,344)  (7,587,728)  (1,004,539)

0

0 (4,319) (572)

) (2,465,023)

(326,344)  (7,592,047)  (1,005,111)
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Independent auditors® report to the unitholders of the Fund of Daiwa Equity Fund Series

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, Daiwa Equity Fund Series” financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the Fund"s assets, liabilities and financial position as at 15 January
2018 and of their results for the year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in lreland
(accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial
Reporting Standards 102“ The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland” , and promulgated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland and Irish law).

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Audited Financial
Statements, which comprise:

the Statement of Financial Position as at 15 January 2018;

the Statment of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;

the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended;

the Schedule of Investments for each of the Fund as at 15 January 2018; and

the notes to the financial statements for each of the Fund, which include a description of the

significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (lreland) (“ISAs
(Ireland)™) and applicable law.

Our responsibilities under I1SAs (lreland) are further described in the Auditors® responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in lIreland, which includes 1AASA"s Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (Ireland)
require us to report to you where:
the manager®™s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or
the manager has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Fund® ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.
However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee
as to the Fund® ability to continue as going concerns.
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Reporting on other information
The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report and Audited Financial
Statements other than the financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The manager is
responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent
material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude
whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
based on these responsibilities.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the manager for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Alternative Investment Fund Manager®s Responsibilities set
out on page 5, the manager is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the applicable framework giving a true and fair view.

The manager is also responsible for such internal control as the manager determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the manager is responsible for assessing the Fund" ability to
continue as going concerns, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the manager intends to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors® report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (lreland) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on
the IAASA website at:

https://www. iaasa. ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8F-a98202dc9c3a/Description of auditors
responsibilities for audit.pdf
This description forms part of our auditors® report.
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Use of this report
This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the unitholders of each of the
Fund as a body in accordance with the European Union (Alternative Investment Fund Managers) Regulations
2013 and for no other purpose.
We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Dublin

10 May 2018

The maintenance and integrity of the Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd. website is the responsibility of Daiwa
Securities Co. Ltd.; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these
matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred
to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the website.

Legislation in the Republic of lIreland governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Independent auditor®s report to the member of SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited
1 Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited (* the Company®) for the
year ended 30 September 2017 set out on pages 10 to 32, which comprise the Income statement, Statement of
financial position, Statement of changes in equity and related notes, including the summary of significant
accounting policies set out in note 1. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is Irish Law and FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Company as at 30
September 2017 and of its loss for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (lreland) (1SAs (lreland)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor”s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statements in
Ireland, including the Ethical Standard issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority
(1AASA), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.
We have nothing to report on going concern

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting
is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the
use of that basis for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial

statements. We have nothing to report in these respects.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the financial statements. The other
information comprises the information included in the directors® report. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or,
except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our
financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the
financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we have not identified material

misstatements in the other information.
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Based solely on that work, we report that
we have not identified material misstatements in the directors” report;
in our opinion, the information given in the directors” report is consistent with the financial statements;
in our opinion, the directors” report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2014.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014
We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statements to be readily and
properly audited and the financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
The Companies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors® remuneration and
transactions required by sections 305 to 312 of the Act are not made. We have nothing to report in this regard.

2 Respective responsibilities and restrictions on use

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the directors” responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company®s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor*s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor"s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on 1AASA™s website at
https://www. iaasa. ie/getmedia/b23890131cf645809b8Fa98202dc9c3as/Description of auditors responsiblities for audit.pdf
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The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities
Our report is made solely to the Company®"s members, as a body, in accordance with section 391 of the
Companies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company®s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor"s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company*s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

John Ahern 25 January 2018

for and on behal f of

KPMG

Chartered Accountants, Statutory Audit Firm
1 Harbourmaster Place

IFSC

Dublin 1
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